
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 13 April 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Constitution 
Committee  

     
 

 

Monday, 25 April 2022 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Ray Wootten (Chairman) 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Paul Fellows and 
Councillor Susan Sandall + one vacancy 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 9) 

4.   Updates on Actions from the previous meeting 
 

(Page 11) 

5.   Planning Services Review - Amendments to the Council's 
Constitution relating to planning decision making 
The Committee to consider proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution and 
make recommendations on amendments that clarify and streamline the planning 
process. 
 

(Pages 13 - 31) 

6.   Constitution Review 
• Part 1 - Explanation and Summary 

• Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution 

• Part 4 - Procedure Rules verbal update 
 

(Pages 33 - 76) 

7.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Minutes 
Constitution Committee 
Monday, 7 March 2022 

  
 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor David Bellamy 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ray Wootten (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Other Members present 
 
Councillor Phil Dilks  
 
Cabinet Members present 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member, Corporate Governance and Licensing 
 
Officers 
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer) 
Graham Watts (Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
Lucy Bonshor (Democratic Officer) 
 

 
 
34. Apologies for absence 
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Fellows. 
 
35. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
36. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2022 were proposed, seconded 
and AGREED. 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

A comment was made in relation to minute 30 to which the Deputy Chief 
Executive and Monitoring Officer replied that the Acceptance of Office made 
when a Member was elected would also extend to cover the new Model Code of 
Conduct adopted by Council in November 2021. 

 
A further comment was made in relation to an action from the last meeting and 
the Member was referred to page 11 of the agenda pack.  

 
37. Updates on Actions from the previous meeting 
 

No comments were made. 
 
38. Planning Services Review - Amendments to the Council's Constitution 

relating to planning decision making 
 

A discrepancy had been raised between the information discussed at the 
Planning Committee workshops and the information contained within the report 
circulated with the agenda and therefore the Chairman proposed to defer the item 
to the next meeting of the Committee.  The proposal was seconded and on being 
put to the vote it was AGREED to defer the item. 

 
Concern was expressed by some Members about the short notice given to defer 
the item.  Comments were also made about the lack of any minutes or notes 
taken at the informal Planning meetings at which the planning review documents 
were discussed.  It was noted that the meetings had been streamed to the public 
but a decision had been made that no formal minutes would be taken due to the 
informal nature of the meeting.  Any points made during the meetings were 
reflected within the report. 

 
The Committee agreed to allow a Member, who was not on the Committee, to 
speak.  He expressed his disappointment about the item being deferred as he 
had travelled from the south of the district to attend the meeting specifically for 
that item as he was also on the Planning Committee.  The Member also asked 
where the informal planning meetings could be found on YouTube as he had 
failed to find them.   

 
DECISION 

 
That the item on the Planning Services Review – Amendments to the 
Council’s Constitution relating to planning decision making be deferred to 
the next meeting of the Constitution Committee. 

 
39. Constitution Review 
 

Members had been circulated with a revised Part 1 and Part 2 of the Constitution.  
Part 3 of the Constitution (Responsibility for Functions) had been approved at 
Council on 27 January 2022.   The contents of both Part 1 and Part 2 were 
mainly administrative.  The Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring 

4



 

Officer stated that the documents had been before the political group leaders and 
also the Council’s Corporate Management Team.  

 
The mapping system used for Part 3 had been used for both Part 1 and Part 2 
which detailed the areas that had been amended, removed or added and the 
reasoning behind this.   

 
One of the key details that had been removed was the political balance 
information.  This information changed on a regular basis and was not something 
that was generally featured within a constitution.  Member’s’ attention was drawn 
to the table on page 45 of the agenda pack which showed those parts lifted from 
the current Constitution (green) and those that had been removed (red) and the 
reason why. 

 
One Member asked what the yellow and blue colours represented and the Head 
of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer replied that the blue 
highlighted areas that had been taken from the current Constitution and had been 
amended and the yellow highlighted areas that had been added. 

 
A further comment was made in relation to how Members were appointed to 
committees and whether this had changed as the process followed in practice 
was not the same as currently represented in the Constitution. It was stated that 
the information in the draft before the Committee at this meeting had been lifted 
from the current Constitution, but this would be looked at to make sure the correct 
process was included in the revised Constitution.   

  
Reference was made to the exclusion of cross references within the Constitution 
as these could be useful and also the removal of political balance.  The proposed 
removal of the political balance table would be something that Members could 
take a vote on as some felt it was useful to be included in the document, whereas 
some Members agreed that it should not feature in the Constitution.  Comments 
on the removal of the political balance table followed.  It was noted that reference 
to political balance and an explanation of how it worked was more useful, than 
having a political balance table which could very quickly become out of date. 

 
Discussion then followed on the overview and scrutiny function and who had 
responsibility to change the overview and scrutiny committees with reference 
being made to the changes presented at Council in 2017 without an 
accompanying report.  The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer stated 
that this should form part of the Terms of Reference of any overview and scrutiny 
committee.  The type and number should be part of the Constitution and any 
constitutional change should be considered by the Constitution Committee, but 
the ultimate decision would be taken by Full Council. 

 
Concern was expressed about how changes to the overview and scrutiny 
committees had been made in the past and the Leader of the Council stated that 
he could submit a report to Council on any changes to the overview and scrutiny 

5



 

committees, but it would be for Council to vote on whether or not to accept the 
proposed changes. 

 
Some of the Members present indicated that this had not been the practice 
previously when changes had been made in 2017. 

 
The Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer then presented 
Part 2 of the Constitution which dealt with the Articles.  
  
The Articles should contain a brief summary of a particular function; what is 
Council, what is Cabinet, what is a regulatory committee, however the current 
Articles were amalgamated with the rules of procedure.    The Part 2 document 
before Members had separated the procedure rules out from a summary of the 
article function which contained now contained a brief overview only.  Part 4 of 
the Constitution would set out clearly the procedure rules for Council, Cabinet, 
regulatory committees, overview and scrutiny committees and the other 
committees.  It would contain the terms of reference and protocols for how 
committees undertook their functions.  

 
The mapping document showed the proposed key changes made to the Articles.  
One of the key changes was the removal of how meetings were postponed and 
how recorded votes were taken.  These were issues that formed part of the rules 
of procedure and although they were shown as removed, they would be reflected 
within Part 4 which dealt with the rules of procedure.  Another change that had 
been made was the removal of the prescriptive list of mandatory training to be 
undertaken for the Governance and Audit Committee.  Neither the Planning 
Committee or the Licensing Committee had such a prescriptive list and 
mandatory training for these Committees were undertaken to cover all the 
necessary training Members required so the list for Governance and Audit had 
been removed. 

 
The documents were before the Committee to seek their views and for any 
issues to be raised, before the documents were circulated to other Members. 
Further engagement through workshops with all Members of the Council would 
be held and if nothing significant was raised then it was proposed that the 
Committee, in principle recommended them for approval by Council.  Anything 
important that was raised during the workshops would be brought back to 
Committee. 

 
The Chairman placed on record his thanks to the Head of Democratic Services 
and Deputy Monitoring Officer for the work that had been done to date in relation 
to the Constitution review. 

 
One Member had identified various grammatical issues and stated that he would 
take them up with the Officer outside the meeting before any workshops took 
place. He then highlighted various areas where changes had been made which 
he felt were either unnecessary, duplicated or the information was incorrect.  
Reference was made to the content of Article 6 and also that one article had 

6



 

“disappeared”.  The Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
stated that Article 6 was an example of where the procedure rules had been 
amalgamated within the article.  The article in question related to overview and 
scrutiny and should be a brief overview of the specific function.  The rules of 
procedure for the overview and scrutiny committees would set out clearly how 
they worked and the terms of reference of each committee and this would be 
contained in Part 4 which had yet to be completed.  It was emphasised that the 
information was not “lost”, it was being moved to another part of the document.    

 
Reference was once again made to the inclusion of a paragraph on political 
balance within the article.  It was noted that all committees needed to abide by 
political balance, however, a Council could agree not to apply political balance to 
a committee but it had to be agreed by 100% of the Council.   Regulatory 
committees had to be politically balanced even though they had to be apolitical in 
their decision making.  The Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer read out the relevant section which concerned political balance, Section 
15 of the Local Government Housing Act 1989. It was confirmed that the 
paragraph on political balance was repeated on all relevant committees and that 
two of the articles had been amalgamated for clarity (Articles 4 and 5), which 
changed the number of articles within the Constitution.   

 
Members looked forward to having a clear and easy to navigate finished 
document. 

 
The recommendations contained within the report were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED. 

 
Recommendations 

 
That the Constitution Committee noted the progress made to date in 
respect of the comprehensive review of the Council’s Constitution and 
provided comments on the content of the new Part 1 and Part 2. 

 
1. The Constitution Committee agrees that an informal workshop be 

held for all Members and; 
 

2. Subject to there being no significant comments received as part of 
the Member workshop, in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Constitution Committee, that the new Part 1 and Part 2 documents be 
recommended to Full Council for approval. 

 
40. Format of Constitution 
 

At the previous meeting of the Committee the format of the final Constitution had 
been asked to be included on the agenda.  It was proposed that the Council 
moved away from having a hard copy Constitution for each Member.  Hard 
copies would be available in the Members Room together with the Political Group 

7



 

Leaders room with the most up to date copy being available electronically on the 
Council’s website.    

 
The format of the document was discussed and a loose leaf A4 document that 
could be easily amended was mentioned.  One Member stressed the importance 
of having a version control on any amended pages so that it was clear which 
version was the most up to date and also the inclusion of an index for ease of 
reference.  

 
Reference was made to the inability to search the current Constitution on the 
website due to how it was uploaded to the system.   

 
Further discussion followed on the number of hard copies that should be 
available especially as the Council had declared a climate emergency.  It was 
noted that a hard copy would be available to those Members who wished to have 
a hard copy and a few hard copies would be available at Council meetings for 
reference and others would be placed within the Members room and Opposition 
Group Leaders room but Members would be directed to the electronic version of 
the document.    

 
A comment was made about the IT devices that Members had and it was stated 
that the device should fit the individual and Members should have a choice of 
what type of device worked best for them, whether that was a laptop or tablet.  

 
 
41. Extra Meeting Dates 
 

Members discussed the need to have extra meetings or workshops before the 
Full Council AGM in May.  Some Members felt that any extra meetings or 
workshops should be held in public.  It was proposed, seconded and AGREED 
that extra meetings and/or workshops are held before the May AGM. 

 
DECISION 

 
That extra meetings and/or workshops of the Constitution Committee are 
arranged before the Full Council AGM in May 2022. 

 
A question was asked about when the scrutiny review findings and any changes 
to the Constitution following the review would come before the Constitution 
Committee.  The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer stated that work 
was on going.  Some changes which weren’t constitutional would go straight to 
Council.  However, any constitutional changes would come before the Committee 
for them to make recommendations to Council.  

 
42. Close of meeting 
 

The meeting closed at 11:48am.  
 

8



 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 7 March 2022 meeting of the Constitution Committee. 
 

min 
no 

Agenda item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

38 Planning Services 
Review - Amendments to 
the Council's Constitution 
relating to planning 
decision making. 

 

Item deferred to next 
meeting of the 
Constitution 
Committee 

Emma Whittaker Constitution Committee to consider 
proposed amendments to the 
Constitution in respect of Planning 
Protocols and make 
recommendations to Council. 

Before the 
AGM in May 

 

 

 

11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

o  

Constitution Committee 
25 April 2022 

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins 
Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 

   

         
  

Amendments to the Council’s Constitution relating to 
planning decision making  

This report proposes changes to the Council’s Constitution and recommends amendments that 
clarify and streamline the planning process.   

 

Report Author 

Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning  

 
 01476 406080 

 emma.whittaker@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Housing that meets the 
needs of all residents  

Governance All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director Governance and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 

8 April 2022 

Approved by: Nicola McCoy-Brown, Director of Growth and Culture 8 April 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Nick Robins (Cabinet Member for Planning 
and Planning Policy) 

11 April 2022 

 

Recommendations to the decision makers 

It is recommended that Constitution Committee: 

1. Supports the proposed amendments to the Planning Protocols at Appendices A 
and B  

2. Endorses the deletion of Article 9c in the Constitution.  

3. Supports, as part of the overall review of the Constitution, recommendations 1 and 
2 being presented to Council for further consideration in May 2022.   

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Housing that meets the needs of all residents is a key theme within the Corporate Plan 

(2020-2023). This is because high quality housing is seen as essential for all, and the council 

is committed to working with partners to provide this. A key action within the Corporate Plan 

was to undertake a planning review to improve performance and support local sustainable, 

high-quality growth.  

1.2 Accordingly, an independent review of the Council’s Planning Service was carried out during 

summer 2020. The review identified several areas where improvements could be made to 

both the Planning Service and the Planning Committee. It was specifically recommended 

that a review of the Planning Committee’s protocols and functions would be beneficial.  

1.3 Almost in parallel with the planning review, was the review of the Council’s constitution.  

Therefore, several consultations took place to both review the Council’s constitution and 

associated planning protocols, including workshops with Members, together with two 

Informal Planning Committee meetings to discuss the proposed changes. The last of which 

was held on 26 November 2021, where Members resolved to endorse:  

a)  the revisions to Article 16 of the Constitution to set out which applications can be deal 

with by Officers and the circumstances when applications must be reported to the 

Planning Committee for a decision (see Appendix A). 

b)  the proposed planning protocols to provide guidance on the standards to be followed by 

Members in relation to planning matters, and which supplement the Members Code of 

Conduct.  

c) the amendment to Article 9c regarding the process required to be followed in the event 

that Members wished to overturn an officer recommendation and refuse a planning 

application.  

1.4 The protocols for Members were revised following the Informal Planning Committee 

(November 2021) to provide clarity around who can request site visits and when a non-ward 

Member can “call” a planning application to Planning Committee for debate.  The amended 

text is coloured red in the protocols (Appendix B) for ease of reference. 

1.5 Furthermore, it is proposed to delete Article 9(c) of the Constitution which currently sets out 

that where the Committee is minded to overturn an Officer recommendation and refuse an 

application, they should enter into a cooling-off period to reflect upon that decision. Instead, 

there should be clear guidance within the protocol setting out that how these decisions are 

reached and that decisions should be taken at Committee, without further delay. The 

guidance is set out in the proposed protocols (Appendix B). 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Councillors and Officers had several opportunities to consider the proposed changes to the 

constitution and protocols, with the most recent being an Informal Planning Committee in 

November 2021. All Members were given the chance to speak and take part in the 

discussion. 

2.2 The Portfolio Holder for Planning and Planning Policy was involved throughout the process 

of drafting the proposed amendments and protocols and have had significant input into what 

is presented today.   

 

14



 

 
 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 There are options to leave the arrangements as they currently are, or to take an alternative 

approach which could be more lenient or more stringent in terms of what decisions should 

be made by the Planning Committee. Whilst the ‘do nothing’ option was discounted, the 

recommendations are appropriate having regard to the public interest.  

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is to recommend to Full Council that the proposed revisions and 

specified deletion are adopted.   

5 Reasons for the Recommendations 

5.1 National Planning Policy guidance advises that it is in the public interest for a local planning 

authority to have effective delegation arrangements in place to ensure that decisions on 

planning applications that raise no significant issues are made quickly, and that resources 

are appropriately concentrated on the applications of greatest significance to the local area.  

5.2 The proposed amendments reflect the recommendations of the planning review in relation 

to best practice, which are balanced with the views of Members.  It is considered that the 

proposed amendments will be beneficial in the running of the Planning Committee and 

provide clarity for Officers and Councillors around the procedures and conduct.    

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 If Constitution Committee supports the recommendations, this will be reported to Full 

Council for adoption in May 2022. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There will be no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the stated 

protocols as they relate to procedural matters.  Councillor expenses may reduce because 

of fewer individual site visits and a favour towards committee site visits. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance & ICT 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 External and independent reviews are a valuable way of assessing the Council’s current 

policies, protocols and governance which can contribute to the sharing and implementation 

of good practice and improve the way in which services are delivered.  

8.2 The changes set out in the report are at the local discretion of the Council and do not breach 

legislation or have any legal implications.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 Under the Equality Act’s (2010) Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makes are required 

to consider the need to:  

 Eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct 

 Advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking account 

of disabilities and meeting people’s needs, and 

15



 

 
 

 Foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding 

9.2 To comply with the general duty, authorities must assess the impact on equality of decision, 

policies and practices. These duties do not prevent the authority from reducing services 

where necessary. They offer a way of developing proposals that consider the impacts on all 

members of the community.  

9.3 In making the decisions, the authority must consider the potential impact of that decision in 

relation to age, disability, race, ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex and gender, 

gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and new and 

breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a decision.  

9.4 In recommending this proposal, no potential impact has been identified on people with 

protected characteristics as determined by the Act because the report is simply varying 

existing delegated powers.  

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The recommendations do not reduce the opportunity for Member involvement in planning 

decision-making and are not considered to introduce any significant risks. Failure to have 

robust governance arrangements in place could impact on the Council’s control environment 

and ability to operate in an economic, efficient and effective matter. This could lead to 

recommendations being made by Internal and External Audit.  

10.2 The determination of planning applications is a statutory administrative process involving 

the application of national, strategic, local and neighbourhood level planning policies within 

a legislative framework. Planning decisions can be appealed by unsuccessful applicants 

and challenged by way of judicial review by aggrieved parties. Complaints regarding 

maladministration and injustice can also be made to the Local Government Ombudsman.  

10.3 To mitigate these risks, it is vital that those involved in the determination of planning 

applications, and particularly Officers and Councillors, act reasonably and fairly to 

applicants, supporters and objectors. Having contemporary protocols and guidance will 

reinforce Councillors’ community engagement role whilst maintaining a robust standard of 

probity that minimises the risk of legal challenge.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no direct community safety implications resulting from this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 With cross-party support, the Council declared a climate emergency in September 2019 

when it pledged to reduce its carbon footprint by at least 30% by 2030 and become net-zero 

carbon as soon as viable before 2050. This requires action at a local level. The Local Plan 

requires the highest possible standards of energy efficiency for new housing and other 

buildings. The Council aims for sites allocated for new housing to be accessible by walking, 

cycling and public transport and to avoid loss of local nature sites and green spaces.  

12.2 To help reduce the carbon pollution from car use, save money and demonstrate leadership 

through practical actions, Members are encouraged to make site visits collectively. 

Members are reminded that a regular schedule of Planning Committee site visits will 

continue to operate. A common-sense application of this matter will be applied. 

16



 

 
 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None identified. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 South Kesteven Local Plan: http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=14904 

14.2 Governance and Audit Committee 30 November 2020: Planning Service External Review: 

Planning Service Review.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

14.3 Information Planning Committee 27 September 2021- Consultation on Amendments to 

Planning Protocols: Consultation on suggested Amendments to Planning Protocols.pdf 

(southkesteven.gov.uk) 

14.4 Informal Planning Committee 26 November 2021 – Consultation on Amendments to 

Planning Protocols: Revision to the planning protocol and accompanying guidance.pdf 

(southkesteven.gov.uk) 

14.5 Governance and Audit Committee 26 January 2022: Planning Service Review – Progress 

Report: Planning Service Review - Progress Report.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – Proposed Revisions to Article 16 of the Constitution 

15.2 Appendix B – Proposed draft protocols – Guidance for Members and Officers dealing with 

     Planning Matters 

 

 

 

 

 

17

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=14904
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28333/Planning%20Service%20Review.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30972/Consultation%20on%20suggested%20Amendments%20to%20Planning%20Protocols.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30972/Consultation%20on%20suggested%20Amendments%20to%20Planning%20Protocols.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31745/Revision%20to%20the%20planning%20protocol%20and%20accompanying%20guidance.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31745/Revision%20to%20the%20planning%20protocol%20and%20accompanying%20guidance.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32273/Planning%20Service%20Review%20-%20Progress%20Report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 

Powers granted by the Council to the Assistant Director of Planning to deal with 

Planning Matters in accordance with the Planning Scheme of Delegation 

The Assistant Director of Planning may exercise and authorise in writing other officers 
appropriately qualified and trained to exercise the following powers under the Town and 
Country Planning Acts and other relevant legislation: 
 

• All decisions, responses or determinations arising in relation to applications for 
planning permission, Listed Building Consent, Advertisement Consent, Conservation 
Area Consent, Certificates of Lawfulness, Variation of Conditions applications (Section 
73 Applications) 

• Approval of reserved matters 

• Prior approvals, consents and consultations submitted to or received by the Council in 
accordance with all Town and Country Planning, Listed Building and associated 
legislation 

• To respond to consultations for the installation of overhead electricity cables under the 
Electricity Acts 

• To determine applications for the approval of details pursuant to conditions on planning 
permissions, prior approval, listed building consent, conservation area consent, 
hazardous substances consent or advertisement consent 

• To make Tree Preservation Orders and to determine applications made under the 
Order 

• To authorise the service of Building Preservation Notices 

• To settle claims of awards of costs awarded against the Council following successful 
appeals, by an applicant, against a Council planning decision 

 

 

Planning Scheme of Delegation  

Development Management 

All decisions, responses or determinations arising in relation to applications, approval of 

reserved matters, prior approvals, Certificates, consents and consultations, submitted to or 

received by the Council in accordance with all Town and Country Planning, Listed Building 

and related or associated legislation (including subordinate legislation and any consolidation, 

re-enactment or amendment thereto) shall be delegated to the Authorised Officer(s) as 

specified above, except the following: 

 

1. In respect of any particular ward: any application for planning permission, approval of 

reserved matters, conservation area consent, tree works approval or listed building 

consent where a Councillor from that ward or the adjoining ward has requested, in 

writing within 21 days of being notified of the application, that the application be 

considered by Committee.  Any request will be accompanied by a statement setting 

out the relevant substantive material planning reason that the application be 

determined by the Planning Committee and the referral is agreed by the Chairman of 

the Planning Committee. Any call-in request received after the initial 21-day notification 

period will be accompanied by a statement setting out the extenuating circumstances 

why the request could not have reasonably made within the notification period; any 

such late requests must be agreed by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 

Planning Committee. 

1 

2 

1.1 

1.2 

2.1 

2.2 

19



 APPENDIX A 
 

 
 

 

2. Any application which is a Departure from the Local Plan must be taken to the Planning 

Committee where it is the officer’s recommendation to approve the application. Where 

the Local Plan is silent on matters, but a proposal is in conformity to the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), then an application can be determined through 

the Scheme of Delegation. 

 

3. Applications that the Assistant Director for Planning considers that the 

application/notice/matter should be considered by Planning Committee. 

 

4. Applications for Reserved Matters where the original outline planning permission was 

determined by the Planning Committee1 

 

5. Applications submitted on behalf of the Council or where the Council has an interest 

in the development and/or land. 

 

6. Applications submitted by (includes where they may be acting as an agent), or on 

behalf of a District Councillor (or his/her spouse or partner or immediate family) or 

where a District Councillor lives in the adjoining property, a property opposite the 

application site or a property either side.  

 

7. The applicant or agent is a member of staff within the Authority. 

 

8. Where an officer who is a Member of the Council’s Senior Management Team or a 

Member of staff within the Planning Service or any member of staff within the Authority 

who could be seen as having a direct input to, and therefore influence on, application 

decisions, lives in the adjoining property, a property opposite the application site or a 

property either side.   

 

Where there are statutory time limits for making decisions or taking action where non-
determination within a set period automatically gives consent (e.g. agricultural buildings, 
demolitions and telecommunications determinations and notifications of works to trees in a 
conservation area), the Assistant Director of Planning or other appropriately qualified and 
trained officers authorised by them in writing, may determine the applications. The authorised 
officer will consider any objections received and, at their discretion, efforts will be made to 
resolve the objection before the expiry period. The existence of an objection will not alter the 
officer’s authority to make a decision in these instances. 
 
The Assistant Director of Planning and other appropriately trained and qualified officers 
authorised by them in writing, may also exercise the following functions: 
 

• Accepting Material minor amendments (Section 73 applications) and/or non-material 

minor amendments (Section 96a Applications) to approved plans 

• To adopt screening and scoping opinions under the Environmental Impact Assessment 
Regulations 

• To carry out and adopt Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats Regulations. 

 
1 In cases where the outline planning application was not determined by the Planning Committee, Councillors 
will need to use the “call-in” procedure should they wish to request that the Committee makes a decision on 
any Reserved Matters application. 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

2.6 

2.8 

2.9 

2.10 

2.11 

2.7 

20



 APPENDIX A 
 

 
 

• To make non-material additions, deletions, or amendments to the conditions to be 
attached to the grant of planning permission, listed building consent, conservation area 
consent, hazardous substances consent or advertisement consent, authorised by the 
Planning Committee or Council 

• To respond to notifications for proposed works to trees in Conservation Areas 

• Issuing hedgerow retention notices and general discharge of duties under the 
Hedgerow Regulations 1997 

• To determine applications relating to the High Hedge Legislation 

• Authorising powers of entry in respect of complaints and appeals under antisocial 
behaviour legislation 

• Entering into a Section 106 Agreement on a delegated planning application approval 
where no financial contributions are required. 

• Entering into planning performance agreements on behalf of the Council as the Local 
Planning Authority 

• Entering premises for statutory purposes 

• To determine the reasons for which planning permission, listed building consent, 
conservation area consent, hazardous substances consent, or advertisement consent, 
would have been refused where this is relevant to appeals against the non-
determination of applications 

• On a without prejudice basis in relation to appeals in the event that the Secretary of 
State or the appointed Inspector is minded to grant permission;  

o To suggest appropriate conditions to be imposed on planning permission, listed 
building consent, conservation area consent, hazardous substances consent 
or advertisement consent; and 

o To approve/make comments on the terms of Section 106 Agreements or 
Unilateral Undertakings 

 
 
Planning Service: enforcement 
The Assistant Director of Planning is authorised to carry out, and authorise in writing other 
officers with necessary training and qualifications, the following functions: 
 

• Administer cautions in respect of breaches of advertisement control and in order cases 
where, following authorisation, court proceedings are considered appropriate. 

• To make determinations that it is not expedient to take enforcement action 

• To remove or obliterate unauthorised placards or posters or display structures under 
the Town and Country Planning Act. 

• To serve Requisitions for Information requiring information as to interests in land or, if 
related to a planning contravention notice, activities carried out on the land 

• To serve Planning Contravention Notices on owners and occupiers of land where it 
appears that a breach of planning control has taken place 

• To serve the following notices following consultation with the Assistant Director for 
Legal and Democratic: 

▪ Enforcement notice 
▪ Breach of condition notice 
▪ Section 215 notice under the Town and Country Planning Act 
▪ Listed building enforcement notice 
▪ Hazardous substance Enforcement notice 
▪ Discontinuance Notices under the Control of Advertisement Regulations 
▪ Stop notice 
▪ Temporary stop notice 

 

3 

2.12 

3.1 

21



 APPENDIX A 
 

 
 

• To accept or reject  such offers to remedy a breach of control as are made under the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990  

• To authorise the institution of legal proceedings in respect of any matter within the 

terms of reference of the Planning Committee and following consultation with Legal 

Services 

• To authorise the institution of legal proceedings for failure to respond to, or to give 

satisfactory information required by Requisitions for Information, or Planning 

Contravention Notices. 

Listed below are the circumstances where enforcement matters will be presented to the 

Planning Committee. All other matters will be dealt with by the ADP, or other duly authorised 

officer: 

i. Where the case involves a Member of the Council (or an immediate relative) or any 

employee of the Council (or an immediate relative). 

ii. Where there is a contravention of planning control involving the Council's own 

development that is unresolved through the planning system. 

iii. Issues of significant public interest. 

Street naming and Numbering 
The Assistant Director of Planning and other officers appropriately qualified, trained and 
authorised by them in writing, have authority to determine uncontested street naming and 
numbering applications. 
 
Planning Policy 
Following consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member and the local Ward Councillor(s), the 
Assistant Director of Planning is authorised to make decisions on the following: 
 

• Applications to designate a Neighbourhood Forum 

• To accept or decline repeat proposals for a Neighbourhood Development Plan or 
Neighbourhood Development Order 

• The validity and acceptance of proposals for a Neighbourhood Development 

• Plan or Neighbourhood Development Order 

• Appointing a person to carry out the examination of a Neighbourhood Development 
Plan or Neighbourhood Development Order 

• Decisions in respect of action to be taken in response to recommendations included 
within the Examiner’s Report and whether to modify the Plan or Referendum Area prior 
to submitting it for referendum 

 
The Assistant Director of Planning has delegated authority to determine applications for grant 
aid in relation to listed buildings and conservation areas with the following exceptions: 

• New applications which would commit the district council to expenditure in excess of 
£1,000 

• Applications for supplementary grant which would commit the district council to further 
expenditure in excess of £500 

• Applications where an applicant has requested reconsideration of a decision of the 
Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic. 

 

After consultation with the appropriate Portfolio Holder, to respond to policy and other planning 

documents relevant to the Council, prepared by other bodies. 

 

4 

5 

3.2 

3.3 

5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

22



APPENDIX B 
 

  

Guidance For Members and Officers Dealing 

with Planning Matters 

 

A Local Code of Good Practice 

 

Draft – April 2022 

23



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

POSITIVE ENGAGEMENT: A GUIDE FOR COUNCILLORS INVOLVED IN MAKING 

PLANNING DECISIONS - GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE NOTE  

SUMMARY  

Councillors can involve themselves in discussions with developers, their constituents and 

others about planning matters. Difficulties can be avoided if you follow these useful general 

hints.  

Do  

• involve officers and structure discussions with developers  

• inform officers about any approaches made to you and seek advice  

• familiarise yourself with the Code of Conduct and follow it when you are representing the 

Council  

• keep your register of interests up to date 

• be aware of what fairness and impartiality mean in your role  

• be prepared to hold discussions with an applicant and officers before a planning 

application is made, not just after it has been submitted  

• preface any discussion with disclaimers; keep a note of important meetings and calls; and 

make clear at the outset that discussions are not binding  

• be aware of what Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, personal and prejudicial interests are – 

refer to the Monitoring Officer or the Code of Conduct if you are unsure  

• recognise the distinction between giving advice and engaging in negotiation and when this 

is appropriate in your role  

• stick to policies included in adopted plans, but also pay heed to any other considerations 

relevant to planning  

• use meetings to show leadership and vision  

• encourage positive outcomes  

• recognise that you can lobby and campaign but that this may remove you from the decision 

making process  

• feed in both your own and your local community’s concerns and issues  

• be aware that you can engage in discussions, but you must have and be seen to have an 

open mind at the point of decision making.  

 

Do not  

• use your position improperly for personal gain or to advantage your friends or close 

associates  

• meet developers alone or put yourself in a position where you appear to favour a person, 

company or group – even a ‘friendly’ private discussion with a developer could cause 

others to mistrust your impartiality.  

• attend meetings or be involved in decision-making where you have a Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest or a prejudicial interest – except when speaking where the general 

public are also allowed to do so  

• accept gifts or hospitality  

• prejudge or be seen to prejudge an issue if you want to be a decision maker on a proposal  

• seek to influence officers or put pressure on them to support a particular course of action 

in relation to a planning application  

• compromise the impartiality of people who work for the Council 

• invent local guides or policies 

24



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

1. Introduction  

This Protocol sets out the practices and procedures that Members and Officers at 

South Kesteven District Council should follow when determining planning applications. 

2. Basic Principles 

The basis of the planning system is to manage development in the public interest.  

Planning is often very contentious because planning decisions affect the private 

interests of individuals, landowners and developers. Decisions are taken based on 

informed judgement with a firm policy basis.  

The Planning process relies on transparency in decision making and officers and 

members must act fairly and with integrity.  

Development proposals that are policy compliant should be approved without delay. 

Members have a duty to represent their constituents but also an overriding duty to the 

wider community.   

3. The role of the Planning Committee 

The role of a Planning Committee is to determine major or more complex applications 

that raise issues of more than immediate local importance.  The intention is to allow 

Councillors to focus on applications needing additional scrutiny where added member 

value in balancing conflicting pressures is important. This of course does not mean 

that minor applications cannot be referred to Committee where they raise issues of 

more than local importance. 

Councillors are encouraged to engage with the planning process early, and often many 

issues can be resolved without applications needing to be referred to Committee for a 

decision.  For example, by raising issues early it may be possible to address concerns 

through amendments, additional information and/or planning conditions. 

Referral to Planning Committee shouldn’t be used to arbitrate between competing 

interest groups or to put off making difficult decisions.  Applications should not normally 

be referred to Planning Committee simply to allow an objector/applicant an opportunity 

to air their views in a public forum. 

Householder or very minor applications should not normally be referred to Planning 

Committee and it is expected that Councillors will work with officers to resolve any 

concerns arising from the proposal.  

4. Your Role as a Member of the Planning Authority 

 

To make planning decisions openly, impartially and with sound judgement for justifiable 

reasons.  

 

5. Relationship to the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 

Do apply the rules within the Members’ Code of Conduct First as these must always be 

complied with. 

 

The guidance in this note seeks to explain and supplement the Members’ Code of 

Conduct for the purposes of the Planning System. If you do not abide by this Code of 

25



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

Local Practice you may not necessarily have breached the Members’ Code of Conduct 

but you may put the Council at risk of proceedings regarding legality or 

maladministration of the related decision.  

 

6. Development Proposals and Interests under the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 

Members should declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) in accordance with 

the Council’s Code of Conduct. These should be declared at the beginning of the 

Meeting and not at the start of the discussion on any particular matter. However, if you 

become aware of a DPI after the start of the meeting you should declare it as soon as 

possible.  

 

Where you have a DPI you should not participate, or give the appearance of trying to 

participate in the decision making process.   

 

The Monitoring Officer will be able to provide you with any specific guidance or discuss 

any particular concerns with you ahead of any meeting.  

 

 

7. Fettering Discretion in the Planning Process 

 

Members making a decision on any planning application as part of the Planning 

Committee must ensure that they have not already fettered their discretion.  This means 

that you should come to any Planning Committee Meeting with an open mind.  Whilst 

you should familiarise yourself with the application and the reports ahead of the 

Committee, it is important that you haven’t made your mind up on how you will vote at 

the meeting of the Planning Committee (or Full Council) until you have heard the 

officer’s presentation and all of the evidence and arguments on both sides.  

 

If you have fettered your discretion, it is important that you do not speak and vote on a 

proposal.   

 

The Monitoring Officer will be able to provide you with any specific guidance or discuss 

any particular concerns with you ahead of any meeting.  

 

8. Lobbying of Councillors 

Lobbying is a normal and perfectly proper part of the political process and those who 

may be affected by a proposal will often seek to influence the decision by approaching 

their Local Councillors or Members of the Planning Committee.  

 

Members of the Planning Committee are free to listen to any point of view about a 

particular planning application, however you should avoid expressing an opinion which 

may indicate that they or the authority has reached a final conclusion until all of the 

relevant arguments and evidence has been put before the Planning Committee.  

Advice to the public should be restricted to procedural matters, including making the 

relevant Officer aware so that material opinions can be reflected in the report. 

26



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

 Where a member of the Planning Committee goes on record in support of a particular 

outcome, or campaign actively for it, it will be difficult for that member to argue 

convincingly that he/she has attended the Committee with an open mind.  If there is an 

appearance of bias or pre-determination then the decision may be vulnerable to a 

challenge by way of a Judicial Review.   

 

9. Lobbying by Councillors 

 

Members will be able to speak on behalf of a body of opinion, however the Committee 

should be made aware as to such opinion as distinct from personal views. 

There should be no party-political grouping on how to vote on applications prior to a 

Planning Committee Meeting, or similar voting because an application is moved by a 

member of the same party. 

Members should not lobby or trade with other Committee Members for a particular 

outcome. 

Whilst a Member can speak on behalf of a body of opinion, they should not personally 

be involved in organising support for or against that opinion. 

Members not serving on the Planning Committee may speak to the Committee in 

accordance with Standing Orders, however, the member attending shall not take part 

in the voting on any item.  

 

 

10. Public Speaking at Meetings 

Any member of the Public, Parish or Town Council has the right to speak in accordance 

with the Rules of Procedure for Public Speaking at Planning Committee (Article 9). 

Their views, insofar as they are material planning considerations, should be taken 

account of with other available information and evidence.   

11. Decision Making 

Members should determine applications in accordance with advice given, including 

verbal updates to reports, unless they have good planning reasons to the contrary and 

in the knowledge of all the available information and evidence. 

Decisions on planning applications have to be taken in accordance with the 

Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  In determining 

any application the Committee is not bound by the recommendation of their officers.  

This means that the Committee is entitled to decide the weight to be attached to the 

various planning considerations that are relevant to the applications. This can 

sometimes result in a decision which is contrary to the recommendation of Officers (an 

Overturn).   

 

For example, the Committee could decide any of the following: 

• To refuse planning permission where Officers have recommended approval; 

• To approve planning permission where Officers have recommended refusal; 

27



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

• Agree with Officers that planning permission should be refused but for different 

reasons; or 

• Grant permission subject to different conditions or legal requirements to those 

recommended.  

Where members wish to determine an application contrary to the recommendation, 

they should indicate the material reason(s) for doing so at the meeting and these will 

be detailed in the minutes to the Meeting. Where a motion is put forward that is contrary 

to the Officer recommendation, the Chairman will ensure that the planning reasons for 

reaching this motion are clear. 

If the Committee is minded to make a decision contrary to the recommendation, the 

relevant officer (including Legal) will be given the opportunity to outline the implications 

for the Committee of such a decision. 

If the Committee wish to add or amend conditions, an Officer will be invited to draft 

such a condition. A detailed minute of the reasons for the Committee’s action should 

be made.   

Where a motion is proposed and seconded for a decision that would differ from the 

Officers recommendation it is important that the Members voting for that motion are 

clear what it is.  For example, in the case of an overturn where the motion is to refuse 

an application recommended for approval, you must be clear as to the reasons for 

refusal. This means that you are clear as to the substance of the reason(s) for refusal 

including the policies that the proposal is contrary to. If you are not clear you should 

ask for clarification before voting. 

 

Officers may make slight amendments to the wording of any new reasons for refusal 

or conditions following Committee although they will not alter their meaning. 

 

Do not vote on a proposal unless you have been present to hear the entire debate 

including the Officer’s introduction and presentation on the application.  

Minutes will relate to the planning reasons for the decision specifically whether: 

•It is in accordance with development plan policies, or 

•Other material considerations indicate otherwise (and what they are) 

•In the case of an approval, the relevant matters to be addressed by planning 

conditions 

 

12. Training 

As set out in the Constitution, Councillors can only sit on the Planning Committee 

where they have received the mandatory training.  

Officers will ensure that annual training is provided and this will be available to all 

Councillors; it is your responsibility to ensure that you attend this training.   

28



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

In addition to the annual mandatory training session Officers will provide other training 

sessions throughout the year on a variety of topics.  Members are encouraged to attend 

as many of these training sessions as possible.   

Members are encouraged to identify any topics that they would like to have training 

upon.  

Annually, the Committee will visit a sample of implemented permissions to assess the 

quality of those decisions. These will take place at 6 monthly intervals. 

The outcome of appeals will be reviewed by Planning Committee at 6 monthly intervals 

to outline feedback and lessons learned. 

 

13. Process 

All members will be notified by email of individual applications within their wards.  

Where an application site straddles a ward boundary, Councillors from all of the wards 

concerned will be notified.  Where a site is located adjacent to the boundary of a Ward, 

the adjoining Ward Councillors will be notified. 

All Councillors will continue to receive the Weekly list setting out applications validated 

by the Council.  Members will also receive updates relating to enforcement cases 

where it has been established that there is a breach of planning control. 

Members are encouraged to view the plans online and contact the case officer if there 

are any queries or matters they wish to discuss. 

Officers are encouraged to contact Councillors where they feel that a matter may be 

contentious and this should be done as soon as possible in the process.  

If a Ward Councillor or adjoining Ward Councillor wishes any application to be 

considered by the Planning Committee they should advise the Case Officer in writing 

and clearly state the planning issues that give them concern. The Councillor making 

this request must also demonstrate that the proposal would have such a prejudicial 

impact or effect on the area of District or its residents to warrant determination by 

Planning Committee. This should be done as soon as possible and within 21 days of 

first being notified of the receipt of the application.  

Where any Councillor considers that an application not in their ward or adjoining their 

ward should be referred to the Planning Committee for a decision, that Councillor 

should first discuss this matter with the Ward Councillor(s).  If the Ward Councillor(s) 

doesn’t respond or disagrees with the request, then the matter can be escalated to the 

Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee however it must be demonstrated 

that the initial discussion has taken place along with the reasons for the escalation and 

any response from the Ward Councillor(s). 

It is understood that sometimes there may be extenuating circumstances where it was 

not possible to make a request to call an application to Committee within the initial 21 

day notification period.  For example this could be due to additional information coming 

to light after the notification period.  If this is the case Councillors should submit their 

request in writing providing the reasons for the late request along with the planning 

reasons for the call-in.  The request will need to be agreed with the Chairman and Vice-

Chairman of the Committee in consultation with the Assistant Director of Planning; if 

they disagree with the call-in request you will be informed.  Councillors are however 

29



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

encouraged to make any request to call an application to Committee as soon as 

possible to avoid unnecessary delays in the determination of applications. 

Where a request is made for an application to be considered by the Planning 

Committee is agreed by the Chairman of the Planning Committee then the reason 

given for the referral will be included in the report.  

Where a request for Committee referral is not agreed with, the Ward Councillor(s) 

making the request will be informed.  

It is expected that if the concerns that gave rise to the Committee referral request are 

addressed through amendments to the application or conditions, the referral request 

will be withdrawn. 

14. Reports to Committee 

The advice from the Courts and Ombudsman  have determined officer reports on 

planning applications must have regard to the following points:  

• reports should be accurate and cover, amongst other things, the substance of any 

objections and the views of those consulted; 

• relevant information should include a clear exposition of the development plan; site 

or related history; and any other material considerations;  

• reports should have a written recommendation of action. Oral reporting (except to 

update a report) should be avoided and carefully minuted when it does occur;  

• reports should contain technical appraisals which clearly justify a recommendation;  

• if the report’s recommendation is contrary to the provisions of the development plan, 

the material considerations which justify the departure must be clearly stated. It is 

particularly important to do so, not only as a matter of good practice, but because 

failure may constitute maladministration, or give rise to judicial review on the 

grounds that the decision was not taken in accordance with the provisions of the 

development plan and the council’s statutory duty under s38A of the Planning and 

Compensation Act 2004 

 

15. Decisions contrary to Officer Recommendations and subsequent Appeals 

 

In determining planning applications, the Planning Committee is entitled to decide the 

weight to be attached to the various planning matters (benefits and harms) that are 

relevant to the application. This may lead to a decision that is different to the 

recommendation of the Officers 

 

In these circumstances, it is essential that reasons for the difference of opinion are clear 

in the minds of the Committee members.   

 

Where an appeal to the Secretary of State is subsequently lodged against a decision 

made contrary to the Officer’s recommendations, Planning Officers (and other Officers 

as appropriate) will normally act as professional witnesses to present the Council’s case 

at public inquiries and local hearings. However, where this would prejudice the outcome, 

the Assistant Director of Planning may ask Members to conduct the appeal1. In this 

 
1 In public inquiries Officers can only give evidence based upon their professional beliefs.  The Royal Town 
Planning Institute (RTPI) Code of Conduct does not allow it’s  members to make or subscribe to any statements 
or reports that are contrary to their own bona fide professional opinions.  

30



 APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B  

instance the Planning Committee will need to be prepared to identify a Councillor(s) to 

support the case at a public inquiry or local hearing.  This would normally be the 

Councillors who proposed and seconded the reasons for the refusal. The Assistant 

Director of Planning and the planning team will support the Members in the preparation 

of the case as appropriate.  

 

16.  Site Visits 

 

Members can make site visits. However, they must avoid contact with the 

applicants/objectors and maintain probity during the process of determination. 

Members will decline invitations from developers to attend private site visits where 

additional information may be presented prior to committee. 

 

Health and Safety & Lone Working considerations are the responsibility of the Member. 

Members do not have rights of access upon private land and such visits must be 

undertaken from the public highway or via public rights of way. 

 

Ward members and/or Members of the Planning Committee will be able to request a 

site visit for any application that is being referred to Planning Committee for a decision. 

If any other Councillor considers that a site visit should be carried out, they should 

discuss this with the Ward Councillor and the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the Planning 

Committee.  Councillors should give reasons for the site visit so that Officers and 

Councillors are clear what elements of a proposal or site need to be viewed.  Where a 

request is made, site visits will be agreed for inclusion by the Assistant Director of 

Planning in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee; site 

visits will take place where it is clear that the visit will add value to the consideration of 

the application. 

 

Site visits will be led by a Council Officer who will explain the proposals in the context 

of the site.  They will also explain the reasons why the site visit has been called. 

 

Any third party at the site visit including the applicant will not be permitted to address 

Councillors.  On occasion, it might be necessary to ask a point of clarification or fact of 

a third party however this will be at the Lead Officer or Chairman’s discretion.   

 

Details of the site visit including who attended will be recorded by the lead officer in 

attendance.  

 

The purpose of the site visit is to establish facts about the site and it’s surroundings.  

No decisions will be made at the site visit. 

 

Ideally site visits should be requested pre-committee to avoid delays in the decision-

making process. However, the Committee may resolve that a decision is deferred 

pending a Member Site visit. This must be moved and voted upon in the usual way 

during Planning Committee at any time after the Officers presentation.  The reasons for 

the site visit must be established and clearly recorded in the minutes.  

 

 

31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Constitution Committee 
25 April 2022 
 
Report by Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Governance and 
Licensing 

         

  

  

Review of the Council’s Constitution 

This report provides the Constitution Committee with an update on the review of the Council’s 
Constitution and an opportunity to formally recommend new Parts of the document entitled ‘Part 1 
– Summary and Explanation’ and ‘Part 2 – Articles of the Constitution’ to Full Council for approval. 

 

Report Author 

Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

 
(01476) 406224 

 graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

A High Performing Council  Governance All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Lucy Bonshor (Democratic Services Officer) 11 April 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer) 

11 April 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance and Licensing) 

12 April 2022 

 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 
That Constitution Committee: 
 
1. Notes progress to date in respect of the comprehensive review of the Council’s 

Constitution. 
 

2. Recommends Parts 1 and 2 to Full Council for approval. 
  

33

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 At its meeting on 30 September 2021, Full Council agreed to undertake a review of the 

Constitution, based upon a new format consisting of the following parts: 

1) Summary and Explanation 

2) Articles of the Constitution 

3) Responsibility for Functions 

4) Rules of Procedure 

5) Codes and Protocols 

6) Members’ Allowances Scheme 

7) Management Structure 

1.2 The Council agreed that the Constitution would be reviewed in sections, commencing with 

Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions, which sets out the Council’s scheme of delegation. 

1.3 At its meeting on 27 January 2022, Full Council approved the new Part 3 – Responsibility 

Functions section of the Constitution and agreed that the following sections should be 

reviewed next: 

- Part 1 – Summary and Explanation 

- Part 2 – Articles of the Constitution  

2 Part 1 (Summary and Explanation) and Part 2 (Articles of the 

Constitution) 

2.1 At the last meeting of the Constitution Committee, the working papers associated with the 

review of Parts 1 and 2 of the Constitution were presented for consideration, where a 

number of amendments or changes were suggested. 

2.2 These amendments and changes were made to the documents which were then 

circulated to all Members of the Council as part of an invitation to join a range of 

workshops to go through the documents in further detail.  

2.3 Three workshops were held at 10am, 2pm and 6pm on 23 March 2022 with 16 Members 

attending in total. Some further amendments and changes were proposed at the workshop 

sessions which have also been reflected in the latest version of the two documents. These 

were typographical, grammatical or formatting amendments which did not substantially 

change the content of the respective Parts. 

2.4 A final version of Part 1 (Summary and Explanation) and Part 2 (Articles of the 

Constitution) are therefore appended to this report for consideration. 

2.5 Work is currently taking place to review the various Procedure Rules contained within Part 

4 of the Constitution, using the same principles of the Parts already reviewed in terms of 

engagement with Members and transparency in respect of working documents. Initial 

engagement with key Members and Officers has commenced in respect of these 

documents and a further update on progress will be presented to Members at the meeting. 

2.6 It is envisaged that further informal workshops will be set up later this month to facilitate 

engagement with Members on Part 4 of the Constitution to assist development of the 

associated Procedure Rules. 

34



 

 
 

 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 There are no legal and governance implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising from this report. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 The Council’s Constitution is the principal document setting out how the Authority 

operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed. It is essential, 

therefore, that the document is easy to follow, understand and interpret which this review 

seeks to achieve.  

7 Appendices 

7.1 Appendix A – Part 1 (Summary and Explanation)  

7.2 Appendix B – Part 2 (Articles of the Constitution)  

 

 

 

 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PART 1 

 

 

SUMMARY AND 

EXPLANATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37

Appendix A



The Council’s Constitution 

 

South Kesteven District Council has agreed a Constitution which sets out how the 

Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to 

ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Some of 

these processes are required by the law, while others are a matter for the Council to 

choose. 

 

What is in the Constitution? 

 

The Constitution is divided into 7 Parts that set out the basic rules governing the 

Council’s business. More detailed procedures and codes of practice are provided in 

separate rules and protocols at the end of the document. 

 

Part 2 of the Constitution is divided into 20 Articles, which set out the basic rules 

governing the Council’s business. The Articles refer to more detailed procedures and 

codes of practice, which are set out in separates rules and protocols contained with 

other Parts of the Constitution. 

 

Article 1 sets out, in more detail, the purpose of this Constitution. This is ultimately to 

ensure that the Council provides community leadership, involves members of the 

public in the democratic process, helps Councillors provide effective representation, 

takes decisions efficiently and effectively, holds decision makers to account and 

improves the delivery of services. 

 

Articles 1 to 20 explain the rights of members of the public and how the key parts of 

the Council operate. These are set out below: 

 

Article 1 – The Constitution 

Article 2 – Members of the Council 

Article 3 – Members of the Public and the Council 

Article 4 – Full Council 

Article 5 – The Chairman of the Council 

Article 6 – Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

Article 7 – Cabinet 

Article 8 – Regulatory Committees  

Article 9 – The Constitution Committee 

Article 10 – Governance and Audit Committee 

Article 11 – Companies Committee 

Article 12 – Employment Committee 

Article 13 – Joint Arrangements 

Article 14 – Officers 

Article 15 – Decision Making 

Article 16 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 

Article 17 – Review and Revision of the Constitution  

Article 18 – Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution 

 

 

38



How the Council Operates 

 

The Council is composed of 56 Members (Councillors) elected every four years. 

Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their Ward. Currently, 

South Kesteven District Council has 30 District Wards. The overriding duty of 

Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their 

constituents, including those who did not vote for them. 

 

Councillors have to agree to follow a Code of Conduct to ensure high standards in 

the way they undertake their duties. This is included in Part 5 of the Constitution. 

 

All Councillors meet together as Full Council. Meetings of Full Council are normally 

open to the public. Here Councillors decide the Council’s overall policies and set the 

budget each year. Full Council appoints a Leader who chairs meetings of Cabinet. 

Full Council also appoints Councillors to sit on Committees and Outside Bodies.  

 

Cabinet  

 

The Cabinet is part of the Council which is responsible for most day-to-day 

decisions. The Cabinet is made up of the Leader who is appointed by the Council 

and up to nine other Councillors appointed by the Leader. When major decisions are 

to be discussed or made, these are published in advance on the Cabinet’s Forward 

Plan. If these major decisions are to be discussed with Council Officers at a meeting 

of the Cabinet, this will generally be open for the public to attend except where 

personal or confidential matters are being discussed. The Cabinet has to make 

decisions which are in line with the Council’s overall policies and budget. 

 

If it wishes to make a decision which is outside the budget or policy framework, this 

must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny  

 

The Council has four Overview and Scrutiny Committees which scrutinise and hold to 

account the work of the Cabinet and Council as a whole. They also have a role in 

helping to develop policies, and challenge or contribute to matters such as service 

delivery and budget monitoring. The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees are: 

 

• Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

• Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

• Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 

• Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 

These Committees also carry out any external scrutiny and allow members of the 

public to have a greater say in Council matters. They can hold public inquiries into 

matters of local concern. 

39



A function of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is to monitor decisions made by 

Cabinet as a whole or individual Cabinet Members, and exercise the ‘Call-In’ function 

where necessary. This enables the Committees to consider whether a decision is 

appropriate and, if not, has the ability to refer it back to the decision-taker for further 

consideration.  

 

Regulatory Committees  

 

Regulatory Committees take decisions which cannot legally be made by Cabinet or 

individual Cabinet Members and have to be made by specifically appointed 

Committees of the Council.  

 

The Council’s Regulatory Committees are: 

 

• Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing Committee 

• Licensing Committee (which deals with separate licensing matters such as 

taxi licensing) 

• Planning Committee 

 

The Council’s Staff 

 

The Council has people working for it called Officers to give professional advice, 

implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some 

Officers have a specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses 

its resources wisely. A Member/Officer Protocol governs the relationship between 

the Council’s elected Members and Officers of the Council which is included in Part 5 

of the Constitution.  

 

Rights of Members of the Public 

 

Members of the public have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council both 

in accordance with this Constitution or as part of general legal rights and are entitled 

to do the following: 

 

• Vote at local elections if they are registered 

• Contact their local Councillor about any matters of concern to them 

• Inspect and obtain a copy of the Constitution 

• Attend meetings of the Council, its Cabinet and its Committees or other 
meetings held in the public domain, except where certain confidential or 
‘exempt’ matters are being discussed 

• Inspect the Cabinet Forward Plan, setting out upcoming key decisions and 
items scheduled to be held at private meetings of Cabinet 

• Petition to request a referendum on a mayoral form of Cabinet 

• Participate at meetings where there is provision for public speaking  

• Make written representations in relation to licensing and planning applications 

• Inspect reports and background papers, and any record of decisions made by 
the Council, Cabinet, Committee or any other meeting held in the public 
domain 

40



• Submit complaints to the Council about standard of service provided by the 
Council 

• Submit petitions to the Council in accordance with the Council’s Petitions 
Scheme 

• Submit complaints to the Ombudsman if they think the Council has not 
followed its procedures properly 

• Submit complaints to the Monitoring Officer if they can evidence that a 
Councillor has breached the Council’s Code of Conduct 

• Inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the external 
auditor 

• Seek information which the Council must disclose under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 

• Make their views known to the Council on any matter 
 

The Council welcomes participation and feedback from members of the public in its 

work. For further information on your rights or to make a written comment, 

compliment or complaint, please contact the Business Support Unit, Council Offices, 

St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, Lincolnshire NG31 6PZ or e-mail: 

frontdesk@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

41

mailto:frontdesk@southkesteven.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PART 2 

 

 

ARTICLES OF THE 

CONSTITUTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



Article 1 – The Constitution  

 

1.1 Powers of the Council 

 

The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with all 

relevant legislation and this Constitution. 

 

1.2 The Constitution 

 

This Constitution, and all of its codes and protocols, is the Constitution of 

South Kesteven District Council. 

 

1.3 Purpose of the Constitution  

 

 The purpose of the Constitution is to ensure that: 

 

i) The Council can facilitate and provide community leadership, involving 

residents, businesses and other stakeholders in the democratic 

process 

 

ii) The Council supports and promotes the active involvement of residents 

in the process of its decision-making 

 

iii) Councillors are assisted in their representational roles as community 

leaders 

 

iv) Decisions are taken efficiently, effectively and transparently 

 

v) Those responsible for making decisions are clearly identifiable and 

accountable to residents and that they explain the reasons for their 

decisions 

 

vi) Council has an effective means of publicly holding decision makers to 

account  

 

vii) The Council’s Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny functions do not 

allow a decision-taker to scrutinise a decision which they have directly 

taken or which they are directly involved 

 

viii) The Council can improve the delivery of its services  

 

1.4 Publication of the Constitution 

 

The Monitoring Officer will ensure that: 

 

i) All Councillors have access to a copy of the Council’s Constitution, in 

whichever format requested 

 

44



ii) Copies of the full document and a summary are available for public 

inspection and published on the Council’s website, and can be 

purchased by members of the local press and public on payment of a 

reasonable fee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



Article 2 – Members of the Council 

 

2.1 Composition 

 

The Council will comprise of 56 elected members, known as Councillors. 

South Kesteven is divided into 30 electoral wards with one or more 

Councillors representing each ward in accordance with a scheme drawn up by 

the Local Government Boundary Commission for England and approved by 

the Secretary of State. 

 

2.2 Eligibility 

 

Only registered electors of South Kesteven, or those living or working there or 

those who own property or rent property within the district will be eligible to 

stand as a Councillor. 

 

2.3 Election and Terms of Office for Councillors 

 

The regular election cycle of Councillors for South Kesteven District Council 

will be held on the first Thursday in May every four years. The term of office 

for Councillors will start on the fourth day after being elected and will finish on 

the fourth day after the date of the next regular election. 

 

By-elections may be held within the regular four-year term, if necessary, 

should any vacancies arise. The term of office for a Councillor elected at a by-

election will start on the fourth day after being elected and will finish on the 

fourth day after the date of the next regular election. 

 

2.4 Key Roles and Functions of all Councillors 

 

 All Councillors will: 

 

i) Collectively be the ultimate policy makers for the Council and carry out 

a number of strategic and corporate management functions 

 

ii) Contribute to the good governance of the area and actively encourage 

community participation and public involvement in decision making 

 

iii) Effectively represent the interests of their ward and of individual 

residents 

 

iv) Balance different interests identified within their ward and represent the 

ward as a whole 

 

v) Be involved in decision making 

 

vi) Be available to represent the Council on other bodies 

 

46



vii) Maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics 

 

viii) Be entitled to act in accordance with the procedures and protocols set 

out in this Constitution 

 

2.5 Rights and Duties of Councillors 

 

 All Councillors will: 

 

i) Have such rights of access as the law allows to such documents, 

information, land and buildings of the Council as are necessary for the 

proper discharge of their functions 

 

ii) Not make public information which is confidential or exempt without the 

consent of the Council or authorised officer or divulge information given 

in confidence to anyone other than a Councillor or Officer entitled to 

know it. For these purposes definitions of ‘confidential’ and ‘exempt’ 

are clarified in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of 

this Constitution 

 

2.6 Conduct 

 

Councillors will at all times observe the Members’ Code of Conduct and the 

protocol on Member/Officer Relations as set out in Part 5 of this Constitution, 

together with all other relevant protocols and procedures within the document. 

 

2.7 Training 

 

Councillors will engage with the Council’s Member Development Programme 

and attend any mandatory training or associated refresher training that may 

be required prior to acting as a Member on certain Committees. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



Article 3 – Members of the Public and the Council 

 

3.1 Rights of Members of the Public 

 

The rights of members of the public are set out in this Article, with specific 

details of rights to information and participation at meetings set out in the 

Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

3.2 Voting and Petitions 

 

Members of the public on the electoral register for the area of South Kesteven 

have the right to: 

 

i) Vote at local electoral events 

 

ii) Sign a petition to request a referendum of all electors for the Council to 

adopt a Constitution with a model of governance facilitated by an 

Elected Mayor  

 

All members of the public, and other stakeholders, can present petitions to the 

Council which are relevant to any matter of which it has powers and duties 

affecting the area of South Kesteven. 

 

3.3 Information 

 

 Members of the public have the right to: 

 

i) Attend meetings of the Council and its Committees, except where 

confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed that the 

meeting as a consequence is held in private 

 

ii) Attend meetings of Cabinet, except where confidential or exempt 

information is likely to be disclosed  

 

iii) Review the Cabinet Forward Plan and schedule of key decisions to be 

taken by Cabinet  

 

iv) Inspect reports and background papers and any records of decisions 

made by the Council, its Regulatory Committees or Cabinet 

 

v) Inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the 

external auditor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



3.4 Participation 

 

 Members of the public have the right to: 

 

i) Participate in the public open forum at meetings of Full Council in 

accordance with the Council Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this 

Constitution  

 

ii) Participate at meetings of the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night 

Refreshment Licensing Committee, the Licensing Committee and 

Planning Committee in accordance with their respective Procedure 

Rules as set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

iii) Participate at meetings of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.  

 

3.5 Complaints 

 

 Members of the public have the right to complain to: 

 

i) The Council itself through the customer feedback process 

 

ii) The relevant Ombudsman, after exhausting the Council’s own 

customer feedback process 

 

iii) The Council’s Monitoring Officer if the matter relates to a breach of the 

Councillors’ Code of Conduct 

 

iv) The Council’s auditors on the legality of the Council’s finances 

 

v) The Information Commissioner in respect of suspected data breaches  

 

vi) The Police in respect of any acts of suspected corruption on the part of 

the person connected with the Council 

 

3.6 Responsibilities of Members of the Public 

 

Members of the public must not be violent, abusive or threatening towards 

Councillors, Officers or any other members of the public on Council land or premises 

and must not wilfully harm things owned by the Council, Councillors or Officers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

49



Article 4 – Full Council 

 

4.1 Policy Framework 

 

The Council’s Policy Framework consists of the following plans and strategies 

which only Full Council can adopt: 

 

• The Corporate Plan 

• The Local Plan and Development Policy Documents 

• The Sustainable Communities Strategy 

• The Pay Policy Statement 

• The Gambling Statement of Licensing Principles 

 

4.2 Financial Framework 

 

The Council’s Financial Framework consists of the following plans and 

strategies which only Full Council can adopt: 

 

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy 

• The Treasury Management Strategy 

 

The setting of the budget includes the allocation of financial resources to 

different services, projects and reserves, calculating the Council Tax base and 

setting the Council Tax. 

 

4.3 Functions of the Council 

 

In addition to the Council’s Policy and Financial Frameworks, there are certain 

other functions which can only be exercised by the Council at a properly 

convened meeting of Full Council of which all Councillors have been 

summoned. These are set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

 

4.4 Council Meetings 

 

 There are three types of Full Council meetings: 

 

i) The Annual Meeting 

 

ii) Ordinary Meetings 

 

iii) Extraordinary Meetings 

 

Each of these meetings will be conducted in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rules and Access to Information Procedure Rules as set out in 

Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

 

50



Article 5 – The Chairman of the Council 

 

5.1 Election of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council  

 

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council will be elected by the 

Council at its Annual Meeting. 

 

5.2 Role and function of the Chairman 

 

The Chairman of the Council and, in his or her absence or when requested to 

act on their behalf, the Vice-Chairman will have the following roles and 

functions: 

 

(a)  Ceremonial Role 

 

The Chairman of the Council has a role as a symbol of the Authority, a 

symbol of an open society and an expression of social cohesion. He or 

she will normally carry out the ceremonial duties of the Council, such 

as: 

 

i) Royal visits 

 

ii) Religious or cultural services 

 

iii) Remembrance Day 

 

iv) Reviews of Troops 

 

v) Civic banquets and functions  

 

vi) Visits of other civic heads 

 

vii) Civic funerals 

 

viii) Visits of consular officers or those of a similar nature 

 

ix) Civic visits abroad 

 

x) Other official engagements 

 

The Chairman will have use of the Chairman’s Room, a motor car and 

the services of a Civic Officer, all at his or her discretion within the 

prescribed budget, for the performance of those ceremonial duties. 

 

The Chairman and their consort, if applicable, will have the right to 

wear the chain or badge of office when performing ceremonial duties 

and chairing meetings of Full Council. 

 

51



Promotional roles may be shared between the Leader of the Council 

and the Chairman. 

 

(b)  Chairing meetings of Full Council 

 

i) To uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution and to 

interpret the Constitution when necessary 

 

ii) To preside over meetings of Full Council so that its business can 

be carried out efficiently and with regard to the rights of 

Councillors and the interests of the community 

 

iii) To ensure that the Full Council meeting is a forum for the debate 

of matters of concern to the local community in accordance with 

Council Procedure Rules 

 

iv) To promote public involvement in the Council’s activities 

 

v) To be the conscience of the Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



Article 6 – Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 

6.1 Appointment and Remit 

 

At its Annual Meeting, Full Council will appoint Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to review and scrutinise the discharge of the Council’s executive 

functions and the effectiveness of the Council’s policies. The Council’s four 

current Overview and Scrutiny Committees are: 

 

• Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

• Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

• Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

• Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

6.2 Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint Councillors to Overview and Scrutiny Committees, 

the number of which will be dependent upon the size of each individual 

Committee as set out in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules at Part 4 

of this Constitution. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees will comply with the political balance rules 

in Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

Cabinet Members cannot be Members of an Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. 

 

6.3 Role and Function 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees must conduct their proceedings in 

accordance with the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to 

Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than 

those rules which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

In addition, Overview and Scrutiny Committees will carry out their duties in 

accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained in 

Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

6.4 Annual Report 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees must report annually to Full Council the 

work they have carried out over the previous municipal year. 

 

 

 

 

53



6.5 Joint Working of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 

The Chairman of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will carry out the following: 

 

i) To chair a meeting for all Members of Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to scrutinise the Council’s proposed budget in accordance 

with the Budget Procedure Rules contained in Part 4 of this 

Constitution 

 

ii) To chair a meeting, when necessary, of the Chairmen of all Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees to determine which Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, having regard to prescribed areas of interest and existing 

workloads, may most appropriately be tasked to undertake work on a 

proposed item for consideration. 

 

iii) To chair a meeting of the Chairmen of all Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees to determine the content of the Overview and Scrutiny 

annual report.  

 

The Vice-Chairman of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will support the Chairman in 

relation to the above meetings and chair the meetings in their absence. In the 

absence of the Vice-Chairman, a Vice-Chairman will be elected from those in 

attendance at the respective meeting, for that meeting only. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54



Article 7 – Cabinet 

 

7.1 The Role of Cabinet 

 

The Leader of the Council will appoint Councillors as Cabinet Members to 

form a Cabinet to carry out all of the Council’s functions which are not the 

responsibility of any other part of the Authority, whether by law or under this 

Constitution. 

 

The Cabinet is at the heart of the day-to-day decision-making process of the 

Council and has a key role in proposing the budget and policy framework to 

Full Council. 

 

7.2 Form and Composition 

 

The Cabinet will consist of the Leader together with at least two but not more 

than nine other Councillors. 

 

7.3 Leader 

 

The Leader will be a Councillor elected to the position of Leader by Full 

Council and will hold the office for a four-year term, unless: 

 

i) He or she resigns from the office 

 

ii) He or she is no longer a Councillor 

 

iii) Full Council passes a resolution to remove the Leader from office 

 

The Leader of the Council will be responsible for: 

 

iv) Determining the size of Cabinet 

 

v) Appointing a Deputy Leader 

 

vi) Appointing, removing and replacing Members of Cabinet 

 

vii) Allocating decision-making powers to Cabinet and individual Members 

of Cabinet 

 

viii) Allocating portfolio areas of responsibility to Cabinet Members 

 

7.4 Deputy Leader 

 

i) The Deputy Leader will exercise all the functions of the Leader of the 

Council in his or her absence. 

 

55



ii) If for any reason the Leader is unable to act, or the office of Leader is 

vacant, and the Deputy Leader is unable to act or the office of Deputy 

Leader is vacant, the Cabinet must act in the Leader’s place, or 

arrange for a Cabinet Member to act in his or her place until a new 

Leader can be elected. 

 

7.5 Other Cabinet Members 

 

Other Cabinet Members, including the Deputy Leader, shall hold office until 

whichever of the following events occur first: 

 

i) They resign from office 

 

ii) They are no longer Councillors 

 

iii) They are removed from office by the Leader of the Council. 

 

Councillors appointed to Cabinet cannot be Members of any of the Council’s 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  

 

The Chairman of the Council or Vice-Chairman of the Council cannot be 

appointed onto Cabinet.  

 

7.6 Cabinet Portfolios 

 

Each Cabinet Member will have special responsibility for the exercise of a 

portfolio of Cabinet functions as agreed by the Leader of the Council. 

 

The Leader will determine which Cabinet Member is to be responsible for 

each portfolio. 

 

7.7 Proceedings of Cabinet 

 

Cabinet must conduct their proceedings in accordance with the principles of 

Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information Procedure Rules set out 

in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those rules which only apply to 

meetings of Full Council. 

 

In addition, Cabinet will carry out its duties in accordance with the Executive 

Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



Article 8 – Regulatory Committees  

 

8.1 Regulatory and other Committees 

 

The Council will appoint the following Committees to discharge the 

responsibilities set out in Part 3(a) of this Constitution: 

 

• Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing 

Committee 

• Licensing Committee 

• Planning Committee 

 

8.2 Membership of Regulatory Committees 

 

Full Council will appoint Councillors to Regulatory Committees, the number of 

which will be dependent upon the size of each individual Committee as set out 

in their respective Procedure Rules at Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

Regulatory Committees will comply with the political balance rules in Section 

15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

8.3 Training 

 

Councillors must attend mandatory training and annual refresher training in 

order to sit and act on the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment 

Licensing Committee, the Licensing Committee and Planning Committee. 

 

8.4 Proceedings of Regulatory and other Committees 

 

Regulatory and other Committees must conduct their proceedings in 

accordance with the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to 

Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than 

those rules which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

In addition, meetings of the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night 

Refreshment Licensing Committee, the Licensing Committee and Planning 

Committee will follow their own prescribed procedures as set out in Part 4 of 

this Constitution. 

 

8.5 Review Boards and Appeal Panels 

 

The Council will appoint Review Boards and Appeal Panels to discharge the 

responsibilities set out in Part 3(a) of this Constitution. 

 

 

 

 

57



Article 9 – The Constitution Committee 

 

9.1 Role and Function  

 

The Council will establish a Constitution Committee which will: 

 

i) Advise and propose to Full Council amendments to the Constitution 

relating to all matters other than conduct and probity issues 

 

ii) Receive and consider reports from the Monitoring Officer or Chief 

Executive in relation to proposed amendments to the Constitution 

 

iii) To receive and consider reports from Cabinet or any of the Council’s 

Committees which propose amendments to the Constitution 

 

iv) To monitor and review the operation of the Constitution  

 

9.2 Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint no fewer than seven Councillors to the Constitution 

Committee. 

 

The Constitution Committee will comply with the political balance rules in 

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

9.3 Proceedings of the Constitution Committee 

 

 The Constitution Committee must conduct its proceedings in accordance with 

the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information 

Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those rules 

which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



Article 10 – Governance and Audit Committee 

 

10.1 Role and Function 

 

 The Council will establish a Governance and Audit Committee which will 

 undertake the following functions: 

 

 Audit Activity 

 

i) Approve the appointment of internal auditors 

 

ii) Approve the internal audit strategy and plan and monitor their 

performance 

 

iii) Review internal audit progress reports, outlining the main issues arising 

and paying particular attention to reports with limited assurance 

 

iv) Review the status of agreed internal audit recommendations to ensure 

implementation by the due date 

 

v) Receive the annual report and opinion of the Head of Internal Audit 

 

vi) Consider the appointment of external auditors 

 

vii) Consider and review the reports of external audit, including the audit 

plan, audit letter and certification of grants and returns 

 

viii) Review the effectiveness of the relationship between internal audit and 

external audit and that the value of the audit process is actively 

promoted in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

 

ix) Meet in private with the internal and external auditors at least annually 

 

Risk Management 

 

x) Approve the risk management strategy and framework 

 

xi) Review the corporate risk register and other key risks (including 

partnerships) and seek assurances that appropriate mitigating action 

has been taken where necessary 

 

xii) Approve the annual report on risk management activity and consider 

the effectiveness of the Council’s overall arrangements for managing 

risk 

 

 

 

 

59



Governance 

 

xiii) Approve the Annual Governance Statement and ensure that in-year 

assurance statements completed by officers properly reflect the risk 

and control environment and any actions required to improve it 

 

xiv) Approve the Code of Corporate Governance and action plan 

 

xv) Review the effectiveness of the governance arrangements 

underpinning the establishment and maintenance of key partnerships 

 

xvi) Consider the outcome of a self-assessment of the effectiveness of the 

Committee’s work (at least bi-annually) 

 

xvii) Produce a Chairman’s Annual Report on the activities of the 

Committee and present this to Full Council 

 

Regulatory Framework 

 

xviii) Review the Council’s internal control policies, such as Contract 

Procedure Rules, Financial Procedure Rules, and any significant 

amendments or revisions to them 

 

xix) Monitor, review and amend as appropriate the thresholds and limits 

contained in the Financial Procedure Rules Guidance Notes 

 

xx) Approve the Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Framework, 

including the Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

 

xxi) Monitor, review and amend as appropriate the Council’s approved 

Treasury Management Strategy, paying particular attention to the 

inherent risks of the prevailing economic/financial climate 

 

xxii) Review the annual report on the effectiveness of the Council’s Health 

and Safety arrangements 

 

xxiii) Receive an annual report on the Council’s involvement in safeguarding 

vulnerable adults and children 

 

xxiv) Initiate inquiries on matters brought to the Committee’s attention by the 

Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant Director or any 

Council body 

 

Accounts and Financial Reporting 

 

xxv) Approve the annual statement of accounts and receive the external 

auditor’s Annual Governance Report on issues arising from the audit 

and the value for money opinion 

60



xxvi) Approve the Annual Revenue and Capital Outturn report, including the 

movement of reserves 

 

xxvii) Approve the Statement of Accounting Policies to be used in the 

production of the financial statements. In particular, to approve the 

underlying assumptions to be used to calculate International 

Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 pension figures in the statement of 

accounts 

 

xxviii) Review and draw the attention of the Council to issues arising out of 

the financial statements and financial reports in accordance with the 

Local Government Act 2003. 

 

Ombudsman 

 

xxix) Consider the Monitoring Officer’s annual report on the outcome of 

Ombudsman enquiries. 

 

xxx) Consider specific reports from the Ombudsman as required. 

 

10.2 Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint no fewer than seven Councillors to the Governance 

and Audit Committee. 

 

The Governance and Audit Committee will comply with the political balance 

rules in Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

The Committee may appoint, as a Co-opted Member, an external appointee 

as a member of the Governance and Audit Committee with voting rights. 

 

10.3 Training 

 

Councillors must attend mandatory training and annual refresher training in 

order to sit and act on the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

10.4 Proceedings of the Governance and Audit Committee 

 

 The Governance and Audit Committee must conduct its proceedings in 

accordance with the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to 

Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than 

those rules which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



Article 11 – Companies Committee 

 

11.1 Role and Function 

 

The Council will establish a Constitution Committee which, in relation to any 

stand-alone company, joint venture partnership or other such collaborative 

arrangement, whether wholly or jointly owned by the Council, will: 

 

i) Provide oversight of company of other venture business planning 

processes to ensure alignment with the Council’s overarching strategy 

whilst recognising the operational independence of the company or 

venture 

 

ii) Provide a scrutiny function for investments, outcomes against funding, 

property disposals and other resourcing decisions made in relation to 

companies 

 

iii) Consider proposals on the creation of any new company or joint 

venture and make recommendations to Cabinet as to the need, 

desirability and business objectives of the new entity prior to its 

creation 

 

iv) Approve and monitor Strategic Business Plans of any new company or 

joint venture together with any substantive changes to those plans 

 

v) Have oversight on an annual basis of the Strategic Business Plans of 

existing companies and joint ventures and to consider any substantive 

changes to those plans 

 

vi) Receive reports and evaluate strategic performance, including financial 

performance against Strategic Business Plans 

 

vii) Make recommendations to Cabinet on appropriate skills and expertise 

at Board level, the strategic objectives and the strategic direction 

 

viii) Approves the appointment of company directors, subject to the Articles 

of Association of the company concerned 

 

11.2 Membership 

 

Full Council will appoint not less than eight Councillors to the Companies 

Committee. 

 

The Companies Committee will comply with the political balance rules in 

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

 

 

62



11.3 Proceedings of the Companies Committee 

 

 The Companies Committee must conduct its proceedings in accordance with 

the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information 

Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those rules 

which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Article 12 – Employment Committee 

 

12.1 The Council will establish an Employment Committee which, in accordance 

with Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of this 

Constitution and in consultation with the relevant Independent Person where 

appropriate, will: 

 

i) Oversee the recruitment and selection process of the Council’s Head of 

Paid Service and determine terms and conditions of employment and 

make recommendations to Full Council in this respect 

 

ii) Take decisions affecting the remuneration, terms and conditions of 

service of the Head of Paid Service 

 

iii) Undertake performance appraisals of the Head of Paid Service and 

contribute to Directors’ annual targets against which performance can 

be measured 

 

iv) Oversee the recruitment and selection process of the Monitoring 

Officer and Section 151 Officer and make recommendations to Full 

Council in this respect 

 

v) Appoint the Deputy Chief Executive, Directors and posts falling with the 

level of Assistant Director, or any such equivalent posts 

 

vi) Consider allegations concerning the conduct or capability of Statutory 

Officers and other Chief Officers in order to establish whether or not 

they are sufficiently well-founded and serious in content to justify 

investigation 

 

vii) Suspend a Statutory Officer or other Chief Officer under the terms of 

the JNC Conditions of Service for Chief Executives or the JNC 

Conditions of Service for Chief Officers 

 

viii) Review the appointment of an external investigator to carry out an 

investigation on behalf of the Committee where necessary 

 

ix) Receive and consider any report of an investigator and, if appropriate, 

hold a capability or disciplinary hearing and determine a course of 

action (up to and including dismissal) within the Council’s power under 

law and within its procedures 

 

x) Dismiss Chief Officers, the Monitoring Officer, the Section 151 Officer 

and posts falling within the definition of Deputy Chief Officer in Section 

2(1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

 

xi) Settle all matters relating to the above appointments or dismissals 

 

64



xii) Oversee the recruitment and selection process of the relevant 

independent person in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and 

make recommendations to Full Council in that respect 

 

xiii) To discharge the Council’s functions under Section 112 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 which have not otherwise been delegated, 

including advising Full Council and Committees on: 

 

• The requirements for, and the availability of, human resources 

necessary for the fulfilment of the Council’s policies 

• The promotion of good employee relations in the Council 

• Matters of general employment and personnel concern to the 

Council 

• The promotion of equal opportunities for all employees of the 

Council, and in the Council’s recruitment and selection 

procedures, and to monitor the effectiveness of such measures 

• Matters affecting the efficient use of the Council’s staff 

resources and to make recommendations to Cabinet 

• Review and recommend adoption of the People and 

Organisational Development Strategy and Annual Pay Policy 

prior to going to Council 

 

xiv) Keep under review local terms and conditions of employment for 

employees and make recommendations regarding the annual local pay 

award 

 

xv) Consider and recommend appropriate actions where necessary in 

response to proposals relating to changes within the structure of the 

organisation which involves substantial changes in responsibilities of 

Chief Officers 

 

xvi) Promote and pursue a policy of equal opportunities in employment and 

‘sign-off’ key information before it is published 

 

xvii) Consider matters relating to superannuation, pensions and gratuities 

 

12.2 Membership 

 

i) Full Council will appoint not less than seven Councillors to the 

Employment Committee. 

 

ii) The Employment Committee will comply with the political balance rules 

in Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

iii) Membership of the Committee will, as and when required, include the 

involvement of the relevant appointed Independent Person. 

 

65



12.3 Proceedings of the Employment Committee 

 

 The Employment Committee must conduct its proceedings in accordance with 

the principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information 

Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those rules 

which only apply to meetings of Full Council. 

 

 In addition, in relation to employment, the Committee must follow the Officer 

Employment Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



Article 13 – Joint Arrangements 

 

13.1 Joint Arrangements 

 

The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more Local 

Authority to exercise functions which are not executive functions in any of the 

participating authorities. Such arrangements may involve the appointment of 

Joint Committees with these other Local Authorities. 

 

13.2 Joint Arrangements – Cabinet  

 

Cabinet may establish joint arrangements with one or more Local Authority to 

exercise executive functions. Such arrangements may involve the 

appointment of Joint Committees with these other Local Authorities. Only 

Members of Cabinet will normally be entitled to be appointed onto Joint 

Committees establish by Cabinet, except in the following circumstances: 

 

• The Joint Committee has functions for only part of the area of the 

Authority and that area is smaller than two-fifths of the authority by area 

of population. In such cases, Cabinet may appoint any Councillor to the 

Joint Committee who is a local ward Member which is wholly or partly 

contained within the area. 

 

13.3 Arrangements to Promote Economic, Social or Environmental Wellbeing 

 

The Council or Cabinet, in order to promote the economic, social or 

environmental wellbeing of South Kesteven may: 

 

i) Enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body 

 

ii) Co-operate with, facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any person or 

body 

 

iii) Exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that person 

or body 

 

13.4 Proceedings of Joint Committees 

 

 Joint Committees must conduct their proceedings in accordance with the 

principles of Council Procedure Rules and Access to Information Procedure 

Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution, other than those rules which only 

apply to meetings of Full Council, unless they set their own Terms of 

Reference. 

 

 If a Joint Committee is established by Cabinet it must also conduct its 

proceedings in accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 

4 of this Constitution, unless they set their own terms of reference. 

67



13.5 Delegation to and from other Local Authorities 

 

 The Council may delegate non-executive functions to another Local Authority 

 or, in certain circumstances, the executive of another Local Authority. 

 

Cabinet may delegate executive functions to another Local Authority of the 

executive of another local authority in certain circumstances. 

 

The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another Local 

Authority shall be reserved to Full Council. 

 

13.6 Contracting Out 

 

The Council (for functions which are not executive functions) or Cabinet (for 

executive functions) may contract out to another body or organisation 

functions which may be exercised by an Officer, and which are subject to: 

 

i) An Order under Section 70 of the Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 

1994 

 

ii) Contracting arrangements where the contractor acts as the Council’s 

agent under usual contracting principles, provided there is no 

delegation of the Council’s discretionary decision making 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68



Article 14 – Officers 

 

14.1 Terminology 

 

The term ‘Officers’ means all employees engaged by the Council to carry out 

its functions. 

 

A ‘Proper Officer’ or ‘Chief Officer’ is an Officer who has responsibility for a 

particular statutory function or range of functions. 

 

14.2 Appointment, Recruitment and Dismissal of Officers 

 

The appointment, recruitment and dismissal of Officers will be undertaken in 

accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 

of this Constitution. 

 

14.4 Statutory Officers 

 

 Head of Paid Service 

 

The Council is required to designate a Head of Paid Service, a Section 151 

Officer and a Monitoring Officer. 

 

The Head of Paid Service cannot be the Monitoring Officer but if they are a 

qualified accountant, they may also hold the position of Section 151 Officer.  

 

The Monitoring Officer cannot hold the position of Head of Paid Service or 

Section 151 Officer. 

 

14.3 Management Structure 

 

The Council will employ such Officers as it considers necessary to carry out 

its functions. 

 

The Council will employ Officers for the following posts who will be designated 

as Chief Officers: 

 

• Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service – Statutory Officer) 

• Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer – Statutory Officer) 

• Director of Commercial and Operations 

• Director of Growth and Culture 

• Director of Housing and Property 

• Assistant Chief Executive 

• Assistant Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer – Statutory Officer) 

 

69



To enable Chief Officers to carryout their functions, the Council will provide 

them with such Officers, accommodation and other resources they consider 

are necessary. 

 

14.5 Deputies 

 

Under the relevant provisions, Statutory Officers of the Council can nominate 

members of their staff to perform their duties when they are unable to act 

owing to absence or illness. This will an Officer at the relevant managerial 

level in the organisation who has the requisite professional qualifications or 

experience according to the particular duties required to be performed. 

 

Deputy Statutory Officers are: 

 

• Deputy Section 151 Officer – Head of Finance 

• Deputy Monitoring Officer – Head of Democratic Services 

 

14.5 Decision-making – Officer Scheme of Delegation 

 

The Council’s scheme of delegation for its Officers is set out in Part 3(c) of 

this Constitution. 

 

14.6 Conduct 

 

Officers will comply with the Officers’ Code of Conduct and the Protocol on 

Officer/Member Relations as set out in Part 5 of this Constitution, together 

with all other relevant protocols and procedures within the document. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

70



Article 15 – Decision Making 

 

15.1 Responsibility for Decision Making 

 

 The Council has established and will maintain a record of what part of the 

Council or individual has responsibility for particular decisions or decisions 

relating to specific areas or functions. This is set out in Part 3 of this 

Constitution. 

 

15.2 Principles of Decision Making 

 

 All decisions of the Council, whoever takes them, will be made: 

 

i) In accordance with this Constitution 

 

ii) Within the Council’s legal powers  

 

iii) With respect for human rights 

 

iv) Having regard to the Council’s objectives and vision set out in its 

Corporate Plan, unless the decision seeks to amend them 

 

v) Having regard to all relevant considerations and only those 

considerations 

 

vi) Having concluded that the desired outcome merits the action or 

expenditure involved 

 

vii) With clearly defined aims and desired outcomes 

 

viii) With an explanation as to what options were considered 

 

ix) With clear reasons for the decision  

 

x) Proportionately 

 

xi) With due consultation and professional advice of Officers having been 

taking into account 

 

xii) In favour of openness and transparency 

 

xiii) Accountably 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



15.3 Decisions by Officers 

 

Officers making decisions must follow the Officer Code of Conduct set out in 

Part 5 of this Constitution and act in accordance with the above principles, 

together with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules, Contract Procedure 

Rules and any other relevant protocols or procedures set out in this 

Constitution. 

 

15.4 Decision-making Affecting Civil Rights and Obligations 

 

Any person or body charged with determining the civil rights and obligations of 

any person on behalf of the Council will follow a proper procedure which 

accords with the requirements of natural justice and safeguards the right to a 

fair trial contained in Article 6 of the European Convention on Human Rights. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72



Article 16 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 

 

16.1 Financial Management 

 

The management of the Council’s financial affairs will be conducted in 

accordance with the Financial Regulations as set out in Part 4 of this 

Constitution. 

 

16.2 Contracts 

 

Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Contract Procedure 

Rules as set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 

16.3 Legal Proceedings 

 

Unless any enactment otherwise authorises or requires, the Chief Executive, 

the Monitoring Officer or any officer of the Council so authorised by them in 

writing may institute, defend or participate in any legal proceedings in any 

case where such action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Council 

or in any case where the Chief Executive considered that such action is 

necessary to protect the Council’s interests. 

 

16.4 Authentication of Documents 

 

Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or proceedings on 

behalf of the Council, it will be signed by either the Chief Executive, Deputy 

Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, any relevant Director or any other person 

authorised by them in writing, unless any enactment otherwise authorises or 

requires, the Council has given requisite authority to some other person. 

 

All contracts entered into on behalf of the Council in the course of the 

discharge of an executive function shall be made in writing. Contracts must 

either be signed by the relevant Cabinet Member or an Officer of the Authority 

or be made under the Common Seal of the Council attested by an authorised 

officer. 

 

16.5 Common Seal of the Council 

 

The Common Seal of the Council will be kept in a safe place in the custody of 

the Chief Executive. A decision of the Council, or of any part of it, will be 

sufficient authority for sealing any document necessary to give effect to the 

decision. The Common Seal will be affixed to those documents which in the 

opinion of the Monitoring Officer should be sealed. 

 

 

 

 

 

73



Article 17 – Review and Revision of the Constitution  

 

17.1 Duty to Monitor and Review the Constitution 

 

The Monitoring Officer will monitor and review the operation of the 

Constitution to ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution are 

given full effect. 

 

17.2 Protocol for Monitoring and Review of the Constitution by the 

Monitoring Officer 

 

It will be the duty of the Monitoring Officer to make such recommendations for 

changes as may be necessary in order to better achieve the purposes of this 

Constitution set out in Article 1 of this Constitution. In undertaking this duty, 

the Monitoring Officer will have regard to any legislative changes affecting the 

Constitution and may: 

 

i) Observe meetings of different parts of the Councillor and Officer 

structure 

 

ii) Undertake an audit trail of a sample of decisions 

 

iii) Record and analyse issues raised with them by Councillors, Officers, 

the public and other relevant stakeholders 

 

iv) Compare practices in this Authority with those of other authorities or 

national examples of best practice 

 

v) Liaise with the Constitution Committee whenever necessary as part of 

the review process 

 

17.3 Changes to the Constitution 

 

i) Changes to the Constitution will only be approved by Full Council after 

consideration of a report by the Monitoring Officer on the proposal by 

the Constitution Committee 

 

ii) This excludes changes which are statements of factual matters 

appertaining to the Council, such as its objectives and policy 

framework, or legislative changes which the Authority has no choice 

but to implement. In such instances, a decision of Full Council will not 

be required in order for the necessary changes to be made to the 

Constitution 

 

 

 

 

 

74



17.3 Changes in the Arrangements for Discharging the Council’s Functions 

 

Any proposal to change the arrangements for discharging the Council’s 

functions to any other form of executive arrangements or alternative 

arrangements as defined in the Local Government Act 2000, Local 

Government Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Localism Act 2011 will 

be dealt with in consultation with local electors and other interest parties and 

in accordance with the procedures laid down in those Acts and all relevant 

subordinate legislation made and guidance issued under it. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



Article 18 – Suspension and Interpretation of the Constitution 

 

18.1 Suspension of the Constitution 

 

 Articles not to be suspended  

 

 The Articles of the Constitution cannot be suspended. 

 

 Rules capable of suspension 

 

All rules of the Council contained within Part 4 of the Constitution may be 

suspended by Full Council to the extent permitted by law. 

 

Procedure for suspension of rules 

 

A motion to suspend any rules will not be moved without notice, unless at 

least on half of the whole number of Councillors are present. The extent and 

duration of suspension will be proportionate to the result to be achieved, 

taking into account the purposes of this Constitution set out in Article 1. 

 

18.2 Interpretation 

 

This Constitution will be interpreted in accordance with the laws of England 

and all words will be given their natural meaning where appropriate. 

 

The ruling of the Chairman of the Council as to the interpretation, construction 

or application of this Constitution or as to the proceedings of Council are final 

and will not be challenged will be at any meeting of the Council. Such 

interpretation will have regard to the purposes of this Constitution contained in 

Article 1. 

76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2022
	4 Updates on Actions from the previous meeting
	5 Planning Services Review - Amendments to the Council's Constitution relating to planning decision making
	Appendix A Proposed Revisions to Article 16 of Constitution
	Appendix B Guidance For Members and Officers Dealing with Planning Matters April 2022 v2

	6 Constitution Review
	Appendix A - Summary and Explanation
	Appendix B - Articles of the Constitution


